
UNITED NATIONS 

ECONOMIC 
AND 
S 0 C 1.-AL c·o U·N:C f'L · 

CONTENTS 

. . '. 

UNITED NATidNS . OP!u.i CONFERl!."'NCE 

Stt.1MARY RECORD OF TilE TENTH l<lEETING .. · 

Held at HoQ'dqu~~er!:3 , rfew Yor!t, . · 
on Wednesday, 17 June 1953, at 2 .45 p.m. 

Distr. 
GENERAL 

E/CONF .14/SR .10 
30 June 1953 

OR IGINAL: . ENQLIS}i · . 

Considera-tio~ of th~ ·draft protocol: .f or .regui at i ng the production of , . . ' . . 

internati onal and wholesale trade •in, and use of opi um: arti\;l_es 5, 
6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 12 £!!, 12 t ur, 13, 14, 15, 16, rr, '18','- i9, 20~ . 
21, 22 and 23 (E/ 2186, E/CONF.l4/L.45 1 47, 49, 53 , 54, 60, 61-63 , 65, 

69, '7o, ·.~74 ,· . 77, 79-81., 84 ) ·(cont iri~ed) . 
' . . . ' · ' ~ . 

' • 

Pres i dent: l-1r • LINDI' SWi tzerland 

Exe.cut i:ve. Secr etary: .. ~ . X A :,rES. 

Administ:ra.t iv~~~ar;t: . · Mr , PASTUHOV ' 

53-17537 



E/ CONF .14/ SR .J,O 
EnsJ.ish 
Pase 2 

CONSIDERATioN OF THE DRAFT PRai'OCOL FOB RIDUIATING THE PRODUCTION OF, INTERNATIONAl 

AND WHOLESALE TRADE IN, AND USE OF oPIUM: ARI'ICLES 5, 6, 71 8, 91 10 1 121 12 bis, 

12 ter, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22 and 23 (E/2186, E/CONF.l4/L.45, 47, 

49, 53 , 54, 6o, 61-63, 65, 69, 10, 74, 77, 79-81,- 84) (continued) 

Artic l e 5 waa adopted vithout .disouea!on. 

Article 6 'E/CONF.l4/L.45) 

Tho PRESIDENT observed that two amendments to the article bad been 

:r:.-v:rv=~:. '!:-;• 't-~e l'~fi:·ir"~e 00'"'n1t.t.AA And Tndia reepectiYe lY (E/CONF .14/L. 74 and 

E/Cr:R .14/L. 7.7) .• 

Mr. HOSSICK (Canada ) asked the Sooretariat t o define the t erm "non-

narcotic substances• 1n article 6. He wondered whether code ine was included. 

Mr. YATES ( Secretariat) explained that the term "narcot ic oub.etnnces• 

was defined in the Final Act as r eferring to opium alkaloids fallins under the 

1931 Convontion. That would . i nclude codei ne which f ell under group II of 

article 1 of t he 1931 Convention as well as thebaine which camo under group I(b) 

of article 1 of that Convantion. Non-narcotic substances in tho draft protocol 

before t he Confer ence could therefore include nolther codei ne nor thebaine . 

The principal alkaloidaoontained in opium were morphine , codeine, thebaine and 

papaverine . 

Article 6 was taken from article 18 of the 1931 Convention where tho t erm 

"non-nareotic substances• was interpreted to mean "drugs in group I( b) or 

group II or not under international co:•t:-ol•. H01·rever, the t orm "r..arcotic 

substances" was not defined i n the 1931 Convention and therefore did not 

include code ine. The practical problem was vhother under the article morphine 

contained in the opium could be converted into codeine . I f that we the 

Conference 's intention, a •. ·o~ .:!ins such ae the following would make that olear: 



E/CONF·.l4/SR.l0 
English' 
fage 3 

"A Party may. conveJ:t, in whole or in part, the morph_ine contained 

in such opium, into eubetancea falling under tbe regimo of group I I 

of article 1 of the 1931 Conventi on, or into substances not falling 

under international narcotics control •••• ". 

With ree~ird. to the amendment to artio~e 6 propoae~ by. the Drafting Committee , 

namely the insertion of the words "under government eon·~rol• immediately after 

"may" at the beginning of tha article , he felt that doubts might arise as to 

the exact meaning. It could be interpret ed to mean t hat the export. of codeine 

obtained from the conversion of tha mo..-phine was not parmi tted eince the phrase 

"under government control~ in article 18 of the ~931 Convention had been 

interpreted as excluding export . 

Mr. VAILLE (France ) pointed out that under article 18 of tpe 1931 
Convention, "each High Contracting Party U."ldertckes that· eny of the drugs in 

Group I which are seized by him in the illicit traffic shell be deat~oyed or .. 

converted into non-narcoti c substances •••• ". Such opium could therefore be 

converted into codeine , ae. vas clear from the text of a.ti;icle 6, para~pb 2. 

He was opposed to aey amendment to that text. 

Mr. KRISHNAMOOR'l.ti"l ~India) obaorved that there was a substantial 

difference between e.rticlo 6 of the draft protocol and article 18 of the 1931 
Convention. Moreover, .the point raised ':Jy the Secretari at was covereQ. by the 

tenn "alkaloids" in paragraph 2 of articlo 6o As tho principle of the export 

of codeine had already been accepted, article 6 should remain unchanged. 

Mr. OR (Turkey) concurred in the vieva expressed by the French 

representative. The 'liext suggested by tl:ls .E:·wcutlve Secretary would merely 

serve to confuse the issue since opium contaiP.ed both Clorphine and natural .codeine. 

Mr. HSIA ( Chi i".a) expreoaed eo.ti3fact ion ~rith tho ex1at1I18 text . 



E/CoNF.l4/SR.iO 
English 
Page .4 

In reply to the .PRESIDEl'fl', Mr •. VAY (Perme.nent Central Opium :Boord) 

said he had ~o views to exprose a~ he f elt that it vould b~ d~fficult at the 

pl;'eaent stage to redraft t .n::- lrhol~ ~rti~le ~or the ee.ke of cla.ri ty. 
··.: . 

Mr • . NIKOLIC (Yueos~via) ~ayourod retention of the article i n its 

existing form. 

Mr. REN:BORci (ob~erver fr~ SWeden) oonsidered it .. dangerous for the 
. . 

Conference to support the theory tha.t codeine was a non-narcoti c substance 1 

since .. it was. cover ed ~!'. ~~eb. by th~ 1931 Convention. On t~.t .point .he di sa.greed 
•• • J • • • • • • • • •• :. • • • • 

both with tho Frunoh r eproeentative and the Secr etar iat . 
. ' 

.J-ir·. ·f.U\LLE (F1:':lnee) said that l!!ail¥ substances vor e consider:ed i :z:t 
. .. . 

spe.c11'ic cases_ to be ne.rcoti~ . However, codeine was not a parc.o~ie substance 

in the generally accepted madical sense of the term. 

1-'Jr·. YATES (Executive Secretary) pointed out that the use of the term 

1n varieus convent ions had given rise to oonfusion. I t might therefore be 
. . . . .··· .. . .· . . 

advisable for the Conference to make ita intention clear. That could be done 
.• , , r . . ~ 

through an interpreta.tion which vould nppoar i n the r ecord. 

Mr. KYROU (Grel.;- .: uoved closure of the de'be.te . The Conference 

should now diseuse the epo~1f1c amendments to articlo 6. 
' ·.· . ..... . ' 

Th~ PRESIDENT, in th~ ab~e~eo of e.ny obJoetion, considered the debate 

closed. He felt that the dieeusaion hBd served to clarify the Conference 's 

intention on the point raised . He considered the amendment propoaed b,y the 
• I . ' . ' 

Drafting Comni ttee to have been ndopte.i . lle ealled on tho I nd. i an ropreoenta t i ve 

to 1ntroduoe his amendment to article 6 (E/CONF.l4/L. 77). 



E/CoNF'.l4/SR.10 
English · 
Page 5 

Mr. KRISHNAMOOR'l'HY (India) said that his amendment, proposing the 

addition of the words "or the alkaloids manufactured therefrom" at the end of 

paragraph 3, was intended to clarify the text in respe?t of a .principle which. bad 

already been decided. Pc.::rograph 3 as it etood wa.s intended to enable a producillf 

State to utilize seized o.,)iu::n and the alkaloids manufactured therefrom for interot 

consumption or export. The Chairman of the Main Committee had explained that tb, 

alkaloids in question '~recovered by the word "consumed", but there might be a 

doubt in the future ae to the interpretation of the word "consumed". Re would 

pref er the point to be made clear in the Protocol itself, though he would not 

oppose its inclusion in the Final. Act instead, 

Mr. VAILLE (France) proposed that the amen~ent be put to the vote 

without discussion. During the debate. in the Main Committee, the Indian 

representative bad. not considered it necessary to have his specific point clarifit 

in the draft protocol itself. Moreover, seized opium usually beca.me part of a 

State~a normal stocks and could theref~ not be controlled. 

Mr. NIKOLIC ,(Yugoslavia) supported the Freceh proposal. 

Mr. KRIS~~OORTHY (India) pointed out that the pri nciple of his 

amendment was consistent with the sense of the discussion in the Main Committee. 

It .wae merely a question of setting all doUbts at. rest. 

The Indian amenement ~~s adopted by 14 votes to 7, .with 5 abstentions. 

Article 6, as amende£ . was adopted by 22 votes to one. 

Mr. VAILLE (France) explained that .he had. voted against the article 

because paragraph 3 was illogical. The implication was that vhile alkaloids 

could be exported, they could not be consumed. 



E/CONF.l4/SR.l0 
English 
Page 6 

Article ·7 (E/CONF.l4/L.49) 

The amendment proposed by t he Drafting Com:ni ttee (E/CONF .14/L. 74} was 
s 

adopted without discussion. 

Arti.cle 7, e.e e.mend,ed, was adopted without discuosion. 

Article 8 (E/CONF.l4/L.49) 

The OJ:lendment proposed by t he Dra-fting Committee (E/CONF'.l4/L.74) vas 

adopted without discussion. 

Mr. ARDALAN (Iran), introducing hie amendment (E/CONF .14/1.79), said 

it_did not affect the substance of the a:ticle, but wss· cerely intended to 

facilitat.e submission of statistics by Ste.tes whic h followed different calendar 

ye~s. Its wording was identic~l vith that contained in· the 1925 Convention. 

Mr. VAILLE {France ) 'Dl0Ved that the: Bl!lendme nt should be discussed. · 

The motion vas unanimously adopted. 

In r eply to the PRSSIDENT, Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugoslavia), Chairman of t he 

Drafting Committee , explained that the t er:n "calendar year" in article 8 meant 

the Gregorian calendar ye·o.r. 

·r.fro. VAILLE (France) observed that it vas precisely because calendar 

ye o.ra vnried in different States that it had been consi der ed advisable to give a 

apeci:tic date . 

Mr. KRISHNAMOORTIIY (India) suggested t hat the word "calendar" should 

be deleted from the article f or the sake of uniformity. 

Mr. MAY (Permanent Central Opium Board) observed that one of the chief 

values of the Board's annual report ~~s the i nclusion of stati stics from comparabl 

States, based on a calendar year from 1 January t o ~1 December. Unless that was 



E/CONF.l4/SR.l0 
English 
Page 7 

the sense of the Irani~n amendment, its adoption would complicate the Board's . 
work. It should not be more difficult f or a State to submit statistics fot a 

year from l January to 31 .c .~c ember than for any other period. 

Mr. BSIA (China), Mr • . VAN MUYDEN (Switzerland), Mr. WALKER (United 

Kingdom) and tt1r o ANSLlliGER (United States of America) favoured retent ion of tbe 

existing t ext. 

Mr. KYROU (Greece) suggested that the matter should be clarified either 

in the preamble of the draft protocol or in the Final Act. It would be made 

clear that "year" meant the Gregorian calendar yee.r. 

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugoslavia) supported the suggestion. 

The Iranian amendment was r ejected by 19 vot es to 2, with 6 abstentions. 

The PRESIDENT considered the proposal made by the Greek representative 

to have been accepted. 

from the English text. 

To avoid confusion, the word "calendar" would be deleted 

Mr. VAILLE (France ) said that his delegationrs amendment (E/CONF.l4/L.6r 

proposing the deleti on of t he word "narcotic" before "alkaloids" in 

paragraph 1 (a) (iii) we.::.- oJ :.f - explanatory. 

The French amendment w~s adopted by 2' votes t o none, with one abstention. 

Article 8, as amended, wee unanimously ~dopted, 

Article 9 (E/CONF.l4/L.49) 

' Article 9 was adopted without discu3sion. 



E/COKF .14/SR.lO 
English 
Page 8 

Art icle 10 (E/CONF.l4/L.4~) 

~i~~-2-.<? was ~dopted \.n tbo,\~ ·discussion. 

Article 12 b:I._~J~L~; r;;.~<i'. · -~2!]. 

M:r . \.' n r.L:'3 (:~·ranc ~) proposed the deletion of the par~nt~eses in 

section 3 · (b} (E) • 

It ;s,_, 8 ·~n Eo >-: ·· · ~ sd. . --... .. .. ... .. -.. ~ . .),., . .. __ _ 

Di scussio:.1 on ~·-ticle 12 ter was postponed. 

Article 1' (E/CONF .l4/L.45) 

Mr. HOSSICK (Canada) asked. f or a seplU'e.te vote on t he tvo paragraphs of 

the article. Hie objection was not one of subetc.nce as he favour ed the. pri ncipl• 

laid down in article 1}. However , the first par~gre.ph seemed r cdunde.nt. since th• 

jurisdiction of the Int~rnational Court of Justice was r ecognized in ~ragraph 2. 

Pa.ra.,a-ra.ph 1 was adopt ed by 22 votes to 2, vith one abstention. 

Mr. KRIS~~OORTUl (India) obser ved that t he point menti oned by t~~ 

Canadie.n r epr esentati ve :.:J been raised in the Drafting Counnitt ee wher e it had 

been considered necessat•y t~~t the -competence of the InteTDational Court should b' 

stated clearly. For that r eason, he ho.d voted in favour of paragraph l. 

Paragraph 2 wne unanimously adopted. 

Article 13 as a whol e was adopted by 25 votes t o none , with one abstenti on. 

Article 14 (E/CONF.l4/L.5}) 

Mr. PASTUHOV (Secretariat) suggested that the words "Secretary-General, 

at t he r equest of the" should be inserted i mmadie.tel.y bef or e t he word "Council". 

It ~us so decided . 



E/CONF.l4/SR.l0 
English 
Page 9 

Mr. ARDALAN (!ran), introducing his ·smendment (E/COl\lF •14/L . 62) 1 

explained t hat a number of States would require a translation of the protoeol 

in t heir own language before tbey coul d sign it. 

The Iranian amendment .was unanimously adopted • 

. . kticle 14, as amended, was .2nanim6usly adopted. 

Article 15 (E/CONF.l4/L.45) 

Article 15 was adopted without discussion. 

Article 16 (E/CONF.l4/L.53) 

Article 16 was adopted without discussion. 

Article 17 (E/CONF.l4/L.49) 

Mr. KRISHNAMOORT!IY (India) introduced his amendment to parasraph 1 -{b j 
(E/CONF .14/L.8l). . · · 

Mr. RENBORG (Observer from Sweden) noted tt.at the effect of the amendment 

would be t o ~ermit no change \~ any time in the countries designated by the 

exporting party when it aignei the protocol. 

Mr. VAILLE (France) thought the amendment was logical and called for' 

no discussion. 

The amendment (E/CONF.l4/L ~81) was adopted unanimous!l• 

Mr. KRISHNAMOORTHY (India) introducing his amendment (E/CONF.l4/L.69)1 

said it was intended t o correct. what appeared t o be en inadvertent omission. 

The principle t hat States where the use, import and export of opium for 

quasi-medical purposes was traditional on l January 1?50 could continue such 

use1 import and export subject t o certain· safeguards had been accepted • 

. The amendment (E/CONF. l4jL.69) WES adopted unanimouslX• 

The Drafting Committee's textual amendment· to ' pa~aefaph 2 (E/CONF.l4/L~74) 

vas adol)ted. 



E/CONF-.14/SR.lO · 
English 
Page 10 

Mr. ANSLINGER (D:1 .:.tcJ:1 S.tates of AmerJ.;ca), 'i-ntroducing the amendment to . . . . . . . 

paragraph 3 sponsored by the UI}.i te.d States .Jointl y with France and Yugoslavia 

(E/CONF.l4/L. 6o); recalled that it had ~een abandoned during earlier debate, but 

should be re-inserted to guard against possible retrogression in the fight to . . ' ' ·' ; . 
abolish opium-smoking. Wi :tJhout s~ch a specifi_c safeguard 1 th~r.e vas a danger 

that thousands of new smokers could be registered before 30 September, thus 

nullifying the hard-won gai:ne achieved in the past twenty years •- · . 

Y~. KRIS~100RTBI (India) cid not think it necessary to discuss the 

amendment as its principle had been agreed upon in the Main Committe~ and its 

omission from the text of article 17 bad been inadvertent. 

~hA 1nint. amP.ndment (E /CONF.l4/t. 60) was ado~ted_~~~im~~~· 

Article 17 as amended was adopted by 27 votes to none, ~ith 1 abstenti on. 

Article 1~. (E/CONF. l4/L. 53 ) 

The PRESIDENT drew attention to the amendments submitted by the United 

Kingdom (E/C0~7.14/L.6l) and the Philippines (E/CONF,l4/L. 65), and observed that 

their aim vas the . same • . 

Mr . WALKER (United Kingdom) explained that his amendment was intended t~ 

reconcile the principle advocated by th3 Philippine and Mexican r epresentatives 

with certain limit~tions of a constitutional nature under which the United Kingdom 

was bound to consult the governments of its non-met ropolitan territories before 

it could commit them to an international agreement like :t he ~~otocol. . 

The United Kingdom Government shared the concern expressed by the Philippine 

representa~ive regarding the flow :·of' .. Hli-c't t traffic in opitun thloough certain 

British N,on-Self-Gov.erning Terdtoriee in. the East , in particular- Hong .·Kong and 

Singapore 1 en r oute to the Philippines and other countries in the· area. The 

two col,qnies were transi.t points; the opium originat ed outside their ·borders, its 

production having been declared illegal in thei·r territory. The United Kingdom 

colonial authorities were exerting every effort t o c~b the i llicit traffic and 

wou;ld be, glad to co-operate with the Government ·of t he Philippines and· any other 

neighbouring Governments to chack that evil. 



E/CONF .14/SR .10 
I::nGliSh 
Page 11 

The Uoited KiLJ~oo Government would naturally be anxious to have the 

territor~es for which it was responsible adhere to the protocol. Under article 18 

as it s~ood, that adherence would be delayed in many cases by the need to secure 

the previous consent of the Governments of dependent territories. As ·the 

legislative assemblies of many of the smaller non-metropolitan territories met 

very infrequently 1 constitutional ratification of the protocol was likely to 

be long delar,ed, thus preventing the accession of other colonies more immediatel y 

concerned to suppress illicit opium traffic, such as Hong Kong and Sin~apore. · 

'l.'hose conside:r:ations had led the Unj.ted K~ngdorn to present its amendment. 

He recognized that there vas no major difference ~n the substance of the 

United Kingdom and Philippine texts, and it the Conference was prepared to 

approve both of thern ~n principl e, he would ~e willing to attempt to combine 
them. 

t.ir, QUINTERO (Philippines ) thanked the United Kingdom representative 

for his remarks concerning. thc desire of the Uoited Kingdom Government to 

co-operate in curbing the ill:.c:!.t traffic in opium reaching the Philippines·· 

through the British colonies in the area . He would be glad to convey that 

pledge of co-operation to the Philippine Cc ,,_ rz;:,ent. 

The Philippi ne amendment (E/CONF.l4/L. 65) was admittedly cl osel y related 

to that of the United Kingdom. Its initia l clause reaffirmed the principle 

approved in the ~1cdn Committee, its second clause provided exceptions in order 

to meet the position of the Ubited Kingdom, while its final sentence facilitated 

immediate adherence to the pr otocol by those dependent territories where the 

problem of constitutional ratification did not arise . 

He requested discussion of the two amcndcents to article 18 . 
The Conference decided to discuss the amendment3 by 20 votes to 3, with · 

2 ebstentions . 



E/CONF.l4/SR.l0 
English 
.Page l2 

Mr. ~:AIJ\l!!R (United. Klns:lom) was pre18red to take the .Philippine text 

as a basis of diecuseion. The second sentence, hoveY~r, vas eo:newl'.At vague: 

it should state whether a territory tAYins g1Yen 1te consent would be bouni by 

the protocol ae from the date Yhen the Secretary-General receiYed notifioation 

of that consent. In a~ case, the procedure for adherence of dependent 

territories should oontorm v1th current pre.otice. 

Mr. CONriNI (Secretariat) pointed o.1t that it b:.i been the practice 

f or the territorial clause to become applicable to dep~nd~nt territori es at 

a specified time, either upon receipt of ·the relnant notification by the 

Secretary-General or thirty days after euch notification, for example. 

United Kingdom am Philippine texts with respect to the procedure for accession 

t o the protocol by non-metropl"):i tan terri torie!l, depending on whether or not 

that accession was ·eubjact· to constitutional ratification. If it vns pree~d 

that the United Kingdom l;ould have to declare, at the time of signatur e , those 

territories which automatically came under the protocol bcoau3e they were not 

bound by constitutional requirements in that respect, that fact should be 

specifically stated 1n the article. 

The PRESIDEN.r, having ascertained that the moYera of both ~rdmente 

were willing to .work out a joint text, proposed that the me~ting should be 

euepended later for .tbat purpose. 

Mr. VAn.LE (France) saw no point in eomb!:-.!!lg the ~~o te.xte if, the 

United Ktneaom having accepted the Philipp!ne ame~nt as a basis for discussion, 

the Conference approved that emen-:'.ment in principle, For his ~rt, he had been 

pre~red to support the United Kill@iom text. If the Philippine text were put 

to the yote, he would reques t a sepe.re.te decision on it3 fir.al sentence and would 

· Yote against that sentence. If the Philippine text were accepted ae a whole, 

it would oblige eountriea haTi~ non-metropolitan territories f or whioh no 

~rre.t.1ons rege.rd1ng the territ~rial application cl.a.use wore needed to emunere.te 



E/CONF .14/SR .10 
E:-:~gL.sh 

Page 13 

the i r non- metropolitan territor~es in the t'.:o ca tegoriP.s referred t o by the 

Chinese r epr esenta tive, with the result t M.t the countr ies prepared t o a ccede to 

the pr otocol immediately would be unnecessari~ delayed. 

Mr . QUTif.l'EP.O (PhiL1Jpines) conceded that the procedural aspect was an 

important feature of his ame:K::'l3:1t. r but did not be.liave any enumeration of non· 

metropolitan territori es in tl~ t~o cat egor ies voul d be r equired. In that 

connoxion, he recalled t hat the United K.:.::: ;_. ~, plenipotentiary h~d signed the 

1931 Convention c!l behalf of all t err itorioc of the British Empire which were not 

members of the League of Nations. In th~ caee of thoDe par ts of the British Empire 

whic:1 were Leti~ue l!!i.;l.tbers , they signed the 1931 Convention on t heir ovu behalf. 

A similar formula. might be founu . 

Mr . WALICER (Uuited Kincdom) reiterated that i t was the pr actice of his 

Government not to coimllit auy dependent terr itorj' without its pr ev i ous consent; 

therefore , he could not sign on be!l~lf cf any st.cn t E>r rito:·y . 1-!cr cover, t he 

signature of t he 1931 Convent i on could not be ~aken es a pr ecedent as there bad 

been nUit6rous ::.wpcr tant devc ). o1.ne nt s in the Britis~l 0ox:,-.onwec.l t h and Empire in the 

twenty-two years s ince t hen . Ee very much hoped , howe•:cr, that by the time the 

Uni teJ Kingdom r a.tifled the protocol, the cc:J:::snt c.f t he most impor tant colonies 

co~cerned would have been secured . 

Mr . U-iARI (Iraq) saw no difficul ty even if an enu'llorati on were 

requir ed : the Secret ar iat ' s D.:partment on Non-Self- Governin6 Territories could 

furnish the necessary 1r.fo~7 ·· r:n . 

The F.REGIDENT proposed ti~t the ~~: - ~rvnce shoul d adjourn debate on 

article 18, proc~~eo .to consider the ens uing articles , then suspend the roeeti ng 

briefly to allow the representatives of the United Kingdom and the Philippines to 

work out a joint text of article 18 for discuss ion by the Conference when i t 
reconvened . 

It was so a rrreed . 



E/CONF.l4/SR.l0 
English 
Page 14 

Article 19 (E/CONF,l~JL. 45) 

Article 19 we adopted Yithout d1Bf!1B1!11on. 

Article 20 (E/CONF .14/r .. 45) 

Artiole 21 (E/CONF.l~/L.45) 

Article 21 was edopted V1t.hout dieonsr.:!2!!• 

Artiole 22 (E/CONF.l~ Jb.45) 

Article 22 was adonted · " t hout d1ecuse1on. 

In eo:-..'"'lextcn l:i th e.rtiole 23 (E/CONF .14/L.45) t the PRES.IDENI' drew 

attention to a n~~e by the Secretary-General (E/cor~.l4/L.63) suggesting the 

insertion in the protocol of a provision relating to the e.dm1ae1b1lity or 

.non-8dm1ee1bil1ty of reservatior.s ae rocommel'Xled by the General .Assembly in 

its resolution 598 (VI), and proposing alterr~tive texts of such a prOY1s1on. 

?v'.r . VAILLE (Fre.noe) , noting thut the J..asembly had r.erely recolll!leM.od 

consideration of the insertion of rrueh a reeorvr.. t !.on clauee and that 

Sub-Committee 1 had deoided that it vould be euperflu~a in the protocol as, 

in practice, only artiole 18 eould give riae to roeorTations by certain parties, 

formally proposed that no reservation clause should be included in the protocol. 

Moreover,. there we.e an appo.rent eontre.diction in Jr.n1ntain1ng a clause stipulating 

the transitional mee.surea whieh tart1ea vero authorized to adopt in apeoii'ic 

oircumstanoea and then introducing a eepara t e reserve. tioM clause. Of' the 

two alternative texts suggested by the Secretariat, A. would call f'or an 

eil\llnere. tion of all poae ible reeerva tiona while B would uselessly burden thfJ · 

text by prohibi tine 8.1\Y res en;.. t1ons • . 



E/CO~rF .14/SR .10 
English 
Page 15 

Mr. KYROU (Greece) shared the French view that the Assembly resolutiOG 

did not bi nd the Conference to i nsert a reservat ions clause, and pointed out that 

the advisory opinion of the :i:1.ternationa.l CoUl·t to which it referred did not 

authorize a negative clause such as alternati.ve B to bind the parties to an 

i nternational convention . Accordingly, the Ccnferenee should take note of the 

Assembly recommendation and omit from its protocol aDY reservations claune. · 

v~. YATES {Secretariat) pointed out that long debate on the question in 

the International Law Commission and other org~~ had not been conclusive, but 

that either alternative A or B would satiety the requirements of the Assembly's 

resolution. If there vere no reservations clause at all, the text of reservations 

would ·have to be communicated to each State par·'· ~· to the protocol, lea\'ing that 

State to draw the legal conseque:~ccs. 

Mr. HOSSICK (Canada ) favoGred Alternative B beceuse it vas in line wi th 

Canada's traditional position r especting r~scrvations to i.nternationa.l agreements. 

They were usually unnecessary and hed the ef fect of -undermining the value ·and 

usefulness of such agreemcntn. 

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugoslnvia) q"..lest ior.ed whether there was any precedent in 

inte_rnational convent ions fo::- a negative rcserv~·.tior:s clause like Alternative B. 

Aport from the fact that sue!~ ;1 clause seemed unusual, article 17 already 

contained reservations and the fin~l ver3icn of article 18 was also likely to 

constitute a re!:c ::.~vutivi.:a provision. 

Z.1r. OOHIROKU (Japan) agreed vith t l.le ct atement of the legal expert of the 

Secretar iat. If the Conferenc~ wanted no f~rth~r reservations, it should make its 

intention clear by adopting al·;.,er~ative B. 

Mr. CONTINI (Secretariat) confirmed the French und Greek views that 

insertion of a reservations clause was reerel y re c~:Jffiended for consideration under 

the Assembly resolution . The Secretariat hac! prepared its note with that f'act 

in mind. 



E/CONF .14/SR .10 
English 
Page 16 

. On the other hand, if no reservations clause were included in the protocol, 

States parties could make reservations not only in respect of articles 17 or 18, 
but in respect of aey other article. If any other party to the protocol should 

object to such reservations, the Secretary-General would merely notify all parties 

of .the rese1~ation and of the objection and leave each party to draw the legal 

consequences. The legal effect of the reservations made by one or more States 

parties which were not accepted by other States parties had been debated at great 

length in United Nations legal organa and by jurists in general, but there was no 

consensus of opinions on that matter. For that reason the Assembly had in effect, 

recommended that future multilateral conventions should include provisions 

specifying whether reservations could be made, and if so to which articles they 

could apply. If that was done .in the Protocol, there vould be no doubt as to the 

legal effect of a reservation made by any Party to it. 

Hr. VAlLIE (France) pointed out that even if the Conference adopted 

Alternative B, there was nothing to prevent a State from claiming the right to 

~ke reservations. The International Law Commission and the International Court 

had debated the matter endlessly without conclusive results. 

On the other hand, Alternative A, containing specific reference to articles 17 
and 18, might be satisfactory. In tP~t event, the United Kingdom could make the 

necessary reservations to article 18 and the original text of that article could 

be maintained. 

Mr. ANSLINGER (United States of America) had understood that all 

reservations to the protocol vere covered in article 17, which provided for 

transitional measures. It vas on that ur.dcrstanding that he had supported the 

Indian and Pakistani requests to include t~~c ir reservations in the protocol. 

Adoption of Alternative A vou~d open the protocol to ~11 kinds of additional 

reservations; in order to avoid that danger, he would support Altern~tive B. 



I/CONF.l4/SR.l0 
E:1glioh 
Po.c;e 17 

· Mr. KRmH:NAMOORTHY (Indio) genc:-slly a~eed vi th the tJni ted States 

r epresentative, but since tbe Secretariat o;pveured to advise insertion of some 

kind of reservations .clause, he would be inclined to favour Alternative A, 

i ncluding Gpecific reference to articlco 17 and 18. Paragraph 2 of Alternative A 

wat~ also valuable inasmuch a.s withdrawal of a declaration by a State party to the 

protocol would be te.nta.mou."lt to the vithdrnHa.l c·f: 1 ts reserva. tion. 

The PRESIDENT observed that f urther leG::.l eonsul.te.tion respecting a 

r es ervations clauoc wa.o apparen-....J.¥ necesc.Ll')'• ~e time a llowed to permit· the. 

Unl t ed Kingdom and Philippines ~epresentativ , .; to .pre:po.re a Joint text of 

article 18 mi ght also be uoed f or · that purpo~e. Accordingly, he would suspend the 

meet i ng. 

The meeti ng vas suspended ~-~10 p.m. an:! resumed at 5·}5 p.m. 

141-. PASTUUOV ( Secr c ·~ •.1:-iat) ret> .1 the p:co:posed revised text of article lB 
submitted by the repreeenta.t · ~~of the United Y~ngdom and the Philip~inee, as 

t'ol lcva: 

"Thic ~·:::>t c~ Jl Ghall a~ply to all the I'lon-Self-Governi_ng, trus~, eoloc.:J.eJ. 

and other nvtl~motl'o:poli~.;on t erri t uriee for t b:: international r e laticns of 

\lhich 1;1ny Pe,rty is re3poneible1 except \:ilerc the previous consent of a 

non-metropolitan terr:l.t ory ie required "tJ the Conetitution of the Party or of 

. the non-metropol i tan terri tory, or required by cuetom. In such caoe the 

Party ~hall endeavour t o secure t he needed consent of the . ~o-metropolitan 

territory within the shortest period pousible and vben that consent ia 

obtained the Party e;h1;1ll notify the Secret<'-~:;t-General. Thie Protocol shall 

apply t o the territory or tc:-ritoriee named in ouch noti.ficatioo from the 

date of ite receipt by .the Secretor y -General. In tboee cases where the 

preYioue con~nt "f the .:{~.l:-met~opol1 tWl terri tory 1~ oo.t required, the ?arty 

eon~~rned shall, .. at the tir.ae of eignatu:rc , ratification or ac~ssioo, declare . ~ . . 

the non-metropolitan territory o~ territoriee to which thie Protocol 

applief:i." 



E/C0NF .14/SR.lO 
English 
Page 18 

Mr. c;,u::; ... .:RO (Philippines) ·expres:.ed :lU gratitude· to the United Kingdom 

representative for his readinesa t o understand t he posi tion or the Philippine 

Government . Be felt that the difficultits encounter ed in drafting the text had 

been smoothed away by the desire of both parties t o co-operate. 

Mr. WALKER (United Kingdom) tb~ked the rei>reser..tative of the Philippines 

for his co-0peratioo in preparing the text and t~e repr esentative of the 

Netherlands for his valuable suggestions. S!~ce the three prineipal parties 

inter ested in the qu.eatien to vhieh .the dratt ~rticle r t:ferred .. bad reached 

agreement, he hoped thGt the Confe=ence vould aceo~t the t ext, as any alternative 

version might undo the vor k vhi~h had been done. 

Mr . J ONKER (licth'Jrland! ) e:xpres; :::t d hie gratitude f or the co-operation of 

the representatives nr the Ph~lippines and the United Ki.Dgdom. 

Mr . VAIU.E (France) va:: prepared to aceept t he proposed nev f orm for 

e.rticle 18, vi th the exceptio~ 'Jf the last sentence. He thougllt t hat a separate 

vote might be taken on that :;;entence . 

Mr . SE!:..J:?A (Lebanon) 88l"eed vith the repr~sentative of France that the 

final sentence of the new draft vas unsatitfoct or y. The outstanding difference 

between the origi~al Philippine and United Kingdom amendments had been precisely 

t hat the Phili ppine amendment bud embodied the pri~ciple t hat signature 0f the 

Prot ocol by metropolitan territories shcul1 Le binding upon dependent territories. 

That principle appeared now t o have been tJaeri!ieed. The consent of lion-Self

Governing Territories vould now have t o' be obtained before the pr otocol could 

apply t o t hem. If the final sentcn~e ~ere not de~eted, ~s the French 

represento.tive ha.d suggested, he felt t!w.t a !:u-ther pr oviBion scoul.d be added 

r equiring that Part1e c should speeifieally aeele.re ' t~ names of territories . t o 

vhieh the Prot ocol vould not ap~ly. 



Lebanon. 

E/CONF.lli./SR.lO 
English 
Page 19 

Mr. PHAlvt HUY TY (V..:.ctnam) o.grt:ed v1th the represen·~tives of France and 

Mr. WALXER (U::1ited Kingdom) eaid -t.ha;\i he bad. seconded the proposal. f or 

e.n o.mended text ot' art1cl.e 18 on t~ understandir.::; that that text shoul.d stand or 

fe.ll as a whole . He would not be abl.e to accept the text if the final sentence 

were deleted. He there:f.ore rc~ewed hia motion f o:- t!le adoption ot that text. 

Mr. QUINTERO (Philippines) said that he would be obliged to vithdrav 

his amendment if the :final sente.;lce were voted c:1 Gepara.teJ.y. 

The PRESIDENT call.e<l for a vote on the runen&lent to article 18 presented 

by the representative of the Philippine s and the ~:.ll. ted Kingdom. 

The amend.!n<:nt ,ms adopted ~y 2r! votes to l, l~ith 5 abstentions. 

By 26 votes to l, with 2 abetentionB1 t::.:.1 text of -";he &!!endment submitted b~ 

the United Kingdom end t i:e Ph~~J.ppines 'tro:_: ndo12ted as articl~ 18 of the draft 

Pr otocol . 

Mr. NIKOLIC ( Yugoc..lc.viil) explained that he had voted e.gainet tbe adoption 

of the new article 18 because "~-.e had vot~d in the Na.in Camni ttee agains t the 

inclueion of the te~1t0rial. ~lausc in the draft protocol. 

Mr. wo·.._1LEJOUN (BElgium) said that he had abstained from voting in the 

abeence of further inotructions from hi~ Go7crnmcnt with regard to tbe next text . 

Article 12 ter (E/CONF.l4/L.54) 

Mr. USHrnOKU (Japan) presentP-;i aD amendment (E/CONF.l4/L. 'l0/Hev.l) to 

article 12 ter. Tbo.t amendment waa 1·endered oececso.ry by the reviaion of 

article 18. Voting in the Main Coomittee had mo.de it clear that a need vas felt 

to make provit.ion for the application of enforcement measures to ter-itoriee 



E/CONF .14/SR.lO 
English 
Page 20 

excluded from the application of the protocol under article 18, if it became clear 

that the orium situation in t hose t erritories wes not satisfactory. But because 

article 18 had been so amended as to make the protocol leca lly binding upon all 

territor i es the above decision in the main Committee had not been embodied in the 

provisions. However, since ~':e ~nded terl of article l G pr oposed by the 

United Kingdom and t he Philippines had now been adopted acain with a resulting 

effect of placing those territor ies outside ·.,he application of the pr ot ocol 

obli gations, he felt that the substance of the decision taken in the Ma in Committee 

should now be incorporated in article 12. T~·at was the purpose of the amendment. 

If sovereign St e.tos which were not parties to t he protocol were to be subject to 

enforcement meas,.lr cG, it should be made possible to apply the same procedure to 

colonial territories in a similar pos ition . If no such provi s i on were included, 

there would be a serious omissil·n f rom the protocol. 

Mr. VAI LLE (France ) thouc:;ht that the pr opc.sed J apanese amendment was 

merely a loBical addition t o articl e 12 ter and r equired no discuss i on. 

The Japanese amendment t o article 12 t er (E/COI;F . 14/TJ. 70/Rev . l } was adopted 

by 24 votes to 1 wi th 2 abstent~~· 

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugosle.-;•ia) seid t h.:lt e l tl.o1J6h he saw the l ogical connexion 

between adopting the amendment t o articl e 12 ter since article 18 had been adopted, 

he had voted against the amendment because he ho.d voted against article 18 . 

Mr . WALKER (United !" ·ngdom) had abs~ai:~()d f rom vot i ng, not because he 

considered t he Japaneao amendment i llogi cal, but be cause he intende~ to vote 

against article 12 ~e~ . 

Article 12 ter was adopted by 26 votes to 2 ·· ~ th one abstention. 

Mr. ESIA (Chi na ) pointed out t hat in v l ew of t he Japanese amendment, 

the title of article 12 ter waa no l onger applicable. 

Mr. VAILLE (France) suggested that the article should be entitled 
11 Universa1 Application" . 

I t was so agreed . 



Inclusion 'ot ·a reservntion clause 

E/CONF.l4/SR.10 
Engl.isn 
Page 21 

Mr. VAILLE (France) thought that before a debate was held on the 

.~elusion of a reservation clauee, a vote should be taken on the provioion w~ieh 

~"secret~iat proposed sbo~ be added to article 23 (E/CONF .14j t.84). That 
' 

addition would be a logical cor.aequence of the adoption or art~cle 18. ae did 

not knov what position the reservation clause vould occupy in the dratt protocol, 

but as51.lmed t)lat it would be placed before article 2:}. 

Mr. ANSLINGER (United States ot ~e!'ica) r ecalled tbat tbe paragraph 

of' the original dJ"S.f.~ protocol referring to r~servations bact been deleted. He 

had himselt expressed an opinion in favot~ ot tbat·deletion w~tbout realizing ito 

full 1mpl1eat1on. He felt that some provieion ehould be inserted to mke clear 

that no res~rvations ··Would be possible except tboue permitted under article 17. 
He suggested the follwing text, "Save as it eJq>ressly provided 1n. article: l7 · 

respecting the decl arations therein permitted, and to the extent auth~ized 1n 

article 18 respecting territorial application, no Party may make any reoervation 

respecting any of the provieione of thie protocol". A provision ao·worded 8hou1d 

not cause any difficulties fer parties finding themselvee able to fult1l their 

obligations in a shorter time tban that 1pecified in articles 17 and 16. He 

hopeq. that it woul.d solve all the proble'" arising in that connexion, and be . 

wi.shed t o express hia gratitude to the Canadian Aelee,a.t1on :. for its auista.nce in 

producing the formul.a • 

... The PRESIDENT thought that the propoaed formula would meet the needs 

for which ~t bad. been deoiS"ed. 

Mr. NIKOLIC (Yugoslavia) vae against the pr1ndple of allowing 

reservationa, for which he thought ample provision wa• made in articlG 17. He 

did not think that the propoted provi•ion ~hould be discus~ed. 

It vas deeided by 10 vot~~ to 51 to diacuee thP- proposed draft prov1e1oo. 



E/COlfF . 14/ SR.;.lO: 
English · 
Page 22 

Mr. \-lAU<ER (United. Kingdom) agreed with the general purpose ot the 

proposed provision, but did ~ot<\inderatand the r eterenc.e t o artic'ie 18, w~ic~ 
:i:iid n:6t · appea;" to h'im to be cone·erned. wi th r eservat.i ons. Tllat article provided 

ii?.' ;·the f i rst place tbe.t · th~ proto~ol ~s to apply in resp·e~t of all Non-Self~ . . 

GOverning ·'i'errt tories and tb:en Vent on to cover all the vari~us ·possible 

. 'ei bia.tiona in those t er.:-1 tories. . '!lo rese~tions would be ncceeeary under ·it·; 
and be thought that the r efer ence t~ arti~le . 18 should be del~ted trom tli~ .. , 

proposed draft. 

Mr. HSIA (C~ina} ·regretted that i t had proved necessary to allow · 

r esel'Vatione to:·.t he draft protocol. · Si nce , . however, eollle · r es ervations Wt)re · to 

. be .. p.e~itteq, his d.elegation was prepared· to c.ccept t he Unfted ·S·tates draft. 

. Mr. NIKOLIC (Y~oalo.via) .pointed out that·· toe United· ··Kingdom 

~eprGse~tativ~ .~ expressed himself. in favour of the pr i nciple ot: ~ties signinc 

tbe protocol on ·beb;a:lf ·of t heir dependent terri toric·e ,· and· then .'lJad· proceeded · 

t o .~ke exeeptions. lolh;ich MOunted to r eserrations'. ·: :He ·reminded the 'Conference 

that . the aim of ttle ·.Pl':'otacal was tO limit the use· or· opium to medi cal 1md' 
~cientifj.c purposes.: . . ·,J.t . ..bsd been agreed that ce.rtal n provisi ono should not .... 

apply to some countries, f or example India and, Egypt . In princi ple 1 he was in 

favour of making it clear that any exemption from the provisiono of the protocol 

eone.ti.tut~ an exeeption .. .. · The' -tJniped: Statas proposal provided the opporttUlity 

f or making all kinds of reservations. 

The . PRESIDENT' enqu~red whether the ·secretariet could give· any 
intormat~on on the important ·l egal . point -of whethe~· · i t · vaa·: necessary to·· inelUde· · 

a r eference to e.rticle 18 in the proposed: pl"QvitJion.t. : ). 



E/ C(•fo.'F .14/SR . 10 
English 
Page 23 

Mr. C0~~INI (Secretariat) eaid that there was no. legal necessity to 

include a r eference to article 18 in the proposed reservetion clause , as that 

arti cle was self-contined. Generally speaking, he would say that reference to 

either ar ticle 17 or erticlo 18 in the reservati ons clause was permissible but 

was not requi r ed . 

Mr. KRISDNAMOORTHI (India) said t hat his dele~ation was prepared to 

accept t he United St ates proposal, but he felt t hat the descripti on of article 18 
as sel f - cont ained applied equally t o art icle 17 , He drew the attention of the 

Confer ence to altP.rna.tivo A of . the ~eservation clauses suggeste.d by the 

Secr etariat (E/CONF . l4/L. r,3) , paragraph 2 of which pr ovided for the withdrawal of 

r eservations, a provision which might, he felt, be useful. He suggested that 

the United stat es draft might be amended by the inclus~on of some provision 

resembl in8 paragraph 2 . 

Ml·. CONTI NI (Secr etariat) pointed out that as regards article 17, 
there was no need to make pr ovisi on f or withdrawa l of reservations, as t hat article 

already prov ided an adequate machi nery with respect to the declarations permitted 

by i t . 

Mr. SHEBEJ\. (Lebanon) was in favour of the United States proposal 

al though, bearing in mind the observat ions put forwerd by t he Secretariat, he 

suggested omitting the references to arti cles 17 end 18. ne GUflgested the 

incl usion of a provision to the effect that no r eoor vat ions to the protocol would 

be acceptable other t hnn t hose alr eady debated and accepted by the Confer ence. 

Mr. ANSLINGER (United States of America ) aoaur ed the representative of 

India that thore was nothing in his proposed t ext to preve~t t he withdr awal of 

reservat i ons . 

Mr. \-TALKER (United Kincdom) replying t o a. que otion f r om the President 1 

said that he di d not i ntend fort~lly t o uove t he deletion f r om t he United Stat es 

draft of the reference to art i cle 18 . He h.'ld al r eady mnde his Government's 

position on the matter quite cleP.r and proposed to abst ain f r om voting on the 

provis i on. 



Elr.O~'F 1 '/c:'"' 10 '··. ·" ·~ ....,n . 
"En[Jish. 

PaGe 24 

~Jr . V .ULI.Ji~ (France) sug<.C;Gt::::i that t he !Jnitd Str.!.te::; draft shoul d he 

; . 

Tne PitESI:-:t:~H Q'Xplai ned chat the t~xt vtotlld now becone a11 art ic .l e in 
' "· ~ . . ; 

the draf~ protocql. nnd called f.:,r n v9tc OJ: u~ ~; t ex t as .an art:i.ch· • . 

dr~ft p:rotocel .. 

The r'RE.:-:r m:NT poi 11td ou.t t h:1 t '!'.he ad~..~pti0n of the text prqposcd by t he 

!:iec rct:ri:~.t f or inc lusion i n .::.rticle 23 wc.uld be n. b!:,i c ::.. l .-;on3cJqucnce oft he 

uuopL..i:.c.in u i :.~. ri.,.i.t_; lo:; l c . 

•liscussion . 

'l'ernl'b al wcr cling of th;:; draft nrl:t~:c · ::l (E/C ONF . 14/ L. 80 . ) 

:t-ir • .r'h::;·.rnHOV (Secr(;t·~.rLt ) f:; :1ii ti:.: .. pr ::p :-- f.•. ·~: ~>,~crotariit n.r.'.uldm<.)n t. t.c 

t he t nmin:J.l "''cm.lin;::: ·~f th,; draft pT.l.J t ( c )l (:-kcw~~ent E/CO!~? . 14/1. 80 ) . 

'lh~ PRESlD.r:NT re;:-in:l~ .! t.( . C m f er ,:P.c <.: t i.£~.t t lH; f.l-[;<:nd~l c.- f t.h~! ne:xt 

meet~ng \:Jou.Ld incl1;·:;·:: ':.'!cpti·.Xt o f the C.r~.ft I'i:na l Jkt , th •~ Pro.tc·c:•l :">.. s ·• Nho1e , 

a n < tho b-Elt· report of the Cr e(!onti.1ls C :.;mtli.t.t~.;e • . 

Mr. . WOL'T .BfiOUJ ( '8.:.l p-ium) · thcmght t h . .i.t 3CWlo dcle~:·':',tbns might no t yet 

:, l . .. 

t o th~ :r:rut:)CC>l n.nJ that a pr ovis i :-•n sh ::.uld be includ·~·: in tho Fin.~l Act t ·' ccve r 

th'1t situ::;.ti on . He sut:rest.e·.i tn.~t th<: ·st~ntenc ":" In witnt:ss ;.1herecf , tne 

undc r::, i gncd r c;-r esen t.r1tivex and obs(·)rver s ·have ~ i ~ned thr) pros •mt F'i n.:tl A.c t " 

(E/CONF . lh /L. )5/hdd . 2) should bE, followed by th f'! fo:n::rclb 1
11 lvit h fullr;.:~·rv.:tLi,·ns 

It W:\s so acr ced . 



S/ C:ONF . J.l;.j;~R. lO 
I~;neli.sh 

P3.i-:-e ;2 5 

1·~:::- . r.:: : ." :< · ; . r:. (Ob::.f: r:e r· f r o1:1 ::>vmr:r:· n ) t:1oucht tl .t i n ·:i-~w of t h.:: d :. n :·Jit i on of th(: 

wnrd "ye:::.r 11 i n ad·.ic l0 ~ of tlv tlr .:1.ft pr otocol, the lffol1mJi ng :·x:ntcnce shc.ulJ he 

t o 31 De:ccrat-::. r 11
• 

'l'h '7 :"'\r;c. t ir.g '!;" ) ·.Lt 6 :50 p , :;;, 




